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To : The Council of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology (the
“University”) standing alone set out on pages 5 to 63,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2025, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in fund balances and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the University standing
alone as at 30 June 2025, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology Ordinance ("The HKUST Ordinance").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements of the University Standing Alone
section of our report. We are independent of the University
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Audit
of the

Responsibilities of the Council and the
Committee for the Financial Statements
University Standing Alone

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the HKICPA and the HKUST Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the University’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council either
intends to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the
University’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of the University Standing Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with the HKUST Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the University’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Council.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
University to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yau Ngai Lun, Alan
(practising certificate number: P06436).

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 October 2025
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2025 2024
WrEE BHET BHET
Notes $million S$million
A
Income
BURTE Bl R K 3.1 2,558 3,486
Government Subventions and Grants
B SR R H A 1,928 1,714
Tuition, Programs and Other Fees
FERFEE WA 32 1,496 1,084
Interest and Net Investment Income
SRR 183 163
Donations and Benefactions
BHENARTS S ELMIA 33 511 485
Auxiliary Services and Other Income
T E IR AR 17/25.13 483 354
Transfers from Deferred Capital Funds
7,159 7,286
FxC 35
Expenditure
B ~ B R
Teaching, Learning and Research
BER R 4,184 3,779
Teaching and Research
= 120 118
Library
rp R R 179 233
Central Computing Facilities
HoAth B ERAR TS 148 139
Other Academic Services
4,631 4,269
R~ 1%
Institutional Support
B R —RETS 580 504
Management and General
e AR 1,002 887
Premises and Related Expenses
B R— R E RS 445 398
Student and General Education Services
HeAthEE) 35 32
Other Activities
2,062 1,821
6,693 6,090
REERIAR 466 1,196

Surplus for the year
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2025 2024
B BHETT BET
Notes $million $million
FERZ H 22
Other comprehensive income for the year
NEER B A KB ZAEE ¢
Item that will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
N EE R A R ST IR IR RS SR R 2 s 25.6 15 126
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income
15 126
EREHEESLEE 481 1,322
Total comprehensive income for the year
BgaE) =
Transfers (from) / to:
BEEES (711) 344
UGC Funds
PR 180 152
Restricted Funds
HoAth B 1,012 826
Other Funds
481 1,322

University Financial Statements 2024/25
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20254E6530H
UNIVERSITY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025
2025 2024
Pk BET BET
Notes $million $million
FEMENEE
Non-Current Assets
LUE B o] 6 8,578 7,968
Property, Plant and Equipment
A 7 18 15
Intangible Assets
R 8 105 84
Right-of-use Assets
BN EE B M 2 UGG 5 IRR < T3 & 9 539 546
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
A PEEBECGEUR Y B EE 9 12,383 11,492
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Income and Expenditure
TERBENE 10 9 9
Investment in an Associate
CE A A E] 11 32 21
Investments in Subsidiaries
21,664 20,135
RENEE
Current Assets
& 1 1
Inventories
JEWSHR RIS TR 12 1,078 878
Accounts Receivable and Prepayments
JFEIHH H B = (8 B 2 E B 13 2,290 1,699
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months
e J E R < 13 866 868
Cash and Cash Equivalents
4,235 3,446
REAE
Current Liabilities
JERHRRO B2 ] 14 2,151 1,037
Accounts Payable and Accruals
FAE A 8 18 9
Lease Liabilities
POk B AER R 15 226 179
Provision for Staff Benefits
PRI 5 16 2,016 1,686
Deferred Income
4,411 2,911
REN AR/ EERE (176) 535
Net Current (Liabilities)/ Assets
HEEERREA A 21,488 20,670
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities
7
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Non-Current Liabilities

BRI TS T2

Accounts Payable and Accruals

HE&H

Lease Liabilities

Gt

Provision for Staff Benefits

MU 55
Deferred Income

IRIEE AT S
Deferred Capital Funds

HEFE
NET ASSETS

BEEES
UGC Funds

PR RS
Restricted Funds

HAE e
Other Funds

BRI
TOTAL FUNDS

R G 20254 10 H 28 HIZ AR #5 i
Approved by the Council on 28 October 2025

PHEE
REFE]H

Stephen YIU Kin-Wah
Treasurer of the University

REEEARER (8)

20254E6 330 H
UNIVERSITY BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025
2025 2024
[N =t EHEIT
Notes $million $million

14 23 0

8 94 72

15 46 51

16 549 617

17 6,236 5,871

6,948 6,611

14,540 14,059

18 3,918 4,629

18 2,356 2,112

18 8,266 7,318

14,540 14,059

R HEEA
K& B (ATED
Nancy IP Yuk-Yu TAM Kar-Yan
President Vice-President for
Administration and Business
8
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202566 H30H ILEEE
UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

BEGES RIS HAtrES: H 4
UGC Funds Restricted Funds Other Funds Total Funds
HET HET HET BT
$million $million $million $million
(FfE 18) (FffEE 18) (FffEE 18)
(Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 18)
202347 H1H Z 456k 4,285 1,955 6,497 12,737
Balance as at 1 July 2023
RN R AEEH
Total comprehensive income for the year
KEERE 344 152 700 1,196
Surplus for the year
HoAtr A= EGEE
Other comprehensive income
N TEIE R EA 2 U TR S e R BB 2 Wiz 0 0 126 126
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income
344 152 826 1,322
B 0 5 (5) 0
Inter-fund transfer
20244F6 H 30 H K 2024407 H 1 H Z 4% 4,629 2,112 7,318 14,059
Balance as at 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024
FAREG /1 (F54) 483
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
AL BB (R518) (711) 180 997 466
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year
HoAtr A= EEE
Other comprehensive income
N T IE R EA 2 U TR S e R BB Wz 0 0 15 15
Unrealised gain on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(711) 180 1,012 481
FpiEi 0 64 (64) 0
Inter-fund transfer
202556 H30H 2 4564 3918 2,356 8,266 14,540

Balance as at 30 June 2025

2024/25 HERE R BRI
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EZE 202556 H30H IR
UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2025 2024
HET HET
$million $million
BEEYIHERE
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
REFERIER 466 1,196
Surplus for the year
FEES
Adjustments for:
IrEE R 622 484
Depreciation and amortisation
HE & RERAR 6 2
Finance cost of lease liabilities
HEYISE  tas Kaskifi 218K 4 0
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
FIRFHEEWA (1,496) (1,084)
Interest and net investment income
S H IR R AR S (483) (354)
Transfers from deferred capital funds
Rl EFEA ) S0 n (881) 244
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital
JEEWSHRRR s PR R < 34 (187) (146)
Increase in accounts receivable and prepayments
JERT BRI T8 F 3 1,045 105
Increase in accounts payable and accruals
PRI G 2 3 0/ CRi V) 134 (297)
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred income
RS RE AR R W 42 25
Increase in provision for staff benefits
BEEEIFHERMA R 153 (69)

Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating Activities

10
University Financial Statements 2024/25
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UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

REEESZHRERE

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

JEESE ~ HRES SR
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment

EE P &EE
Payment for purchase of intangible assets

JFEIH H a8 = (8 H 2 I CE )/

(Increase)/Decrease in bank deposits with original maturity over three months

MR HEEBC IR B EE

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

HEYISE ~ s Rk 2 A
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment

B A HEE R HA 2 UV IR 2 M &

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

H BT A PHEE RS EEIR LB B E ZUA

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

SEI B AT
Capital Injection to a subsidiary
B RS A EUA
Interest and investment income received
TEEIIRSRY
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
REEH RS RE

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

FHLUEEY)ZE - Bes Kkt IR B 2 B RO
Subventions and grants and donations received for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

SAHE AR
Payment of lease liabilities

REEEFESRA

Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities

RERERREZ R

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

FOZHEREFRRSE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

FRZBIEREREE
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

11

2025 2024
BHET BHET
$million $million
(1,120) (1,283)
11 @)
(591) 573
(1,179) (2,263)
1 0
22 0
1,676 1,861
11 0
98 127
(1,115) (992)
976 806
(16) (6)
960 800
2 (261)
868 1,129
866 868
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology is
incorporated under The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology Ordinance (Chapter 1141, Laws of Hong
Kong) as a technological university dedicated to the
advancement of learning and scholarship, with special
emphasis on research, postgraduate education, and close
collaboration with business and industry. The principal
activities and other particulars of the University’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 11.

The University’s registered address and principal place of
operation is Clear Water Bay, Hong Kong.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”), which is the University’s functional and
presentation currency. These financial statements were
approved for issue by the Council on 28 October 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-
funded and non-UGC-funded  Activities (“the
Guidelines”) and the Statement of Recommended Practice
(“SORP”) for institutions funded by the University Grants
Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the historical cost convention, except
for the following assets which are stated at fair value:

— financial assets at fair value through income and
expenditure

— financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
University’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 24.

Consolidated financial statements for the University and
its subsidiaries have been prepared separately.

12



3. FEAREIX
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE BY SEGMENT

()  RERSEBCT (HAR)

University Segment Income and Expenditure (By function)

2025 2024
Sy SEEZ
BRE BB BEY sl
HYrEE) Inter- EHIES) Inter-
UGC- segment UGC- segment
Funded IR EEERES Transaction Bt Funded IR EELRES Transaction BT
Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total
HAREZ Sp=Visl 2d
RS R
BEEH BEEH
Self- Self-
financing RlEEh FrisERChEy HAtsES financing RigtEgh [EiRgi=E o] HAth5ESh
CPEP Research Donation Other N CPEP Research Donation Other Nt
Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total
HET BET BET HET HET BET HET HET BET HET BET BHET HET BHET HET EHET
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
() ()
(Note) (Note)
WA
Income
BUFEBN A (fsE 3.1) 2,369 1 0 0 188 189 0 2,558 3,264 0 0 0 222 222 0 3,486
Government subventions and grants (Note 3.1)
By SRR R HA 837 1,091 0 0 0 1,091 0 1,928 771 943 0 0 0 943 0 1,714
Tuition, programs and other fees
FIERoFHEU A (FifsE 3.2) 584 19 0 412 481 912 0 1,496 449 26 0 289 320 635 0 1,084
Interest and net investment income (Note 3.2)
SRR 0 0 0 183 0 183 0 183 0 0 0 163 0 163 0 163
Donations and benefactions
SHBNAR S B E MU A (B3 3.3) 203 19 13 3 375 410 (102) 511 181 21 10 1 369 401 97) 485
Aucxiliary services and other income (Note 3.3)
EHE R RS 364 0 1 118 0 119 0 483 264 0 0 89 1 90 0 354
Transfers from deferred capital funds
4,357 1,130 14 716 1,044 2,904 (102) 7,159 4,929 990 10 542 912 2,454 97) 7,286
Bz (HaE 3.5)
Expenditure (Note 3.5)
e - By R
Teaching, Learning and Research
BB RIS 3,351 537 21 169 146 873 (40) 4,184 3,083 494 16 60 166 736 (40) 3,779
Teaching and research
i e 96 24 0 0 0 24 0 120 95 23 0 0 0 23 0 118
Library
LR R R 163 15 1 0 0 16 0 179 147 16 1 69 0 86 0 233
Central computing facilities
HABER 125 1 1 4 18 24 [€)) 148 110 1 1 6 22 30 [€)) 139
Other academic services
BTk
Institutional Support
B R — S 380 29 3 45 178 255 (55) 580 345 30 1 41 140 212 (53) 504
Management and general
Beds R e 753 49 7 116 77 249 0 1,002 648 39 4 104 92 239 0 887
Premises and related expenses
B B — S RS 200 15 0 33 203 251 6) 445 157 14 0 30 200 244 3) 398
Student and general education services
HoAhSE S 0 0 0 0 35 35 0 35 0 0 0 0 32 32 0 32
Other activities
5,068 670 33 367 657 1,727 (102) 6,693 4,585 617 23 310 652 1,602 97) 6,090
ARAEE (B548) / Ekd (711) 460 (19) 349 387 1,177 0 466 344 373 (13) 232 260 852 0 1,196
(Deficit) / Surplus for the year
AR (B / BN -
(Deficit) / Surplus for the year transferred to:
PEEEE (711) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (711) 344 0 0 0 0 0 0 344
UGC Funds
PR 0 0 0 180 0 180 0 180 0 0 0 152 0 152 0 152
Restricted Funds
Hofth Eesz 0 460 (19) 169 387 997 0 997 0 373 (13) 80 260 700 0 700
Other Funds
(711) 460 (19) 349 387 1,177 0 466 344 373 (13) 232 260 852 0 1,196

" 2024725 FEFE R RIS e
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SERA BRI (8D
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE BY SEGMENT (CONT’D)

(b)  RESEEAR (FERHEED

University Segment Expenditure (By accounting nature)

FI% (M 3.5)
Expenditure (Note 3.5)

He R

Salaries and benefits

HMEES
Other operating expenses

rEE R

Depreciation and amortisation

L2
Total Expenditure

2025 2024
SR SEEZ
il izl
Ea- i Inter- Ea i Inter-
HEEE segment BEES) segment
UGC-Funded JEBE GRS Transaction Byt UGC- IR RINES) Transaction Bt
Activities Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total Funded Non-UGC Funded Activities Elimination Net Total
HAREZ BHEEEZ
FEER FEER
BEES BEES
Self-financing RbEE ifsi=r ] HAtES Self- RIFEES) FraHRCEE HAEEy
CPEP Research Donation Other Net financing Research Donation Other INEF
Activities Activities Activities Activities Sub-total CPEP Activities Activities Activities Sub-total
HET BET HET HETT HETT BET HETT HET HETT HET HETT HET BET HET BET HET
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
() ()
(Note) (Note)
2,970 394 19 63 121 597 0 3,567 2,722 374 14 44 114 546 0 3,268
1,730 241 12 145 478 876 (102) 2,504 1,603 219 8 138 467 832 97) 2,338
368 35 2 159 58 254 0 622 260 24 1 128 71 224 0 484
5,068 670 33 367 657 1,727 (102) 6,693 4,585 617 23 310 652 1,602 97) 6,090

o EEH R G TR AT E R G A

Note: Inter-segment transactions mainly included internal rental transactions.

i :

Remarks:

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the Stat

HEGE R E G E ) EG RS (A5 )

Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities (“the Guidelines”)

ABHEEE G HEHIETT ) T BT -

The University follows the Guidelines issued by the UGC to allocate their costs, which is summarised as follows:

t of Recom

B 5 B2 2 TR 17 B B B e R B T 8 I 7 I B B B R R 8 3 AP ) ZHUE T -

ded Practice for the UGC-Funded Institutions and are not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

— LUEE B T BT R R, TR LN - AL s
There should be no hidden subsidy to avoid dilution of UGC-funded resources and unfair competition with the private sector;

— I REE SR BRI 5 F B L BOR A -

All direct costs which can be separately attributable to specific activities should be fully taken up and borne by such activities;

— A TEE B E EBIIEE BT (755380 ~ (TERRIIRTS) » F B FH TR - 1R RGBT ) PHIRA A2 FHEIRE G G E -

All indirect costs, such as centrally provided facilities, administrative and support services, which cannot be separately attributable to specific activities, are allocated as shared costs to UGC and non-UGC segments based on cost allocation methodologies set out in the Guidelines.

University Financial Statements 2024/25
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3.1

3.2

33

BUFRBI X
GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS AND GRANTS

PR GRERELEREK - 5

UGC recurrent block grant, gross

i R R ERE (IR )

Less: Refund of General and Development Reserve Fund (Note a)
PEEGRELE R - (3L 16)

UGC recurrent block grant, net (Note 16)

FEE R (M 16)

Earmarked grants (Note 16)

BURFBRIREEERSK (I 16)

Earmarked grants from government agencies (Note 16)
FCEak (kb))

Matching grants (Note b)

WFFERCEHERR (FFEE 16)

Research matching grants (Note 16)

pisz=pen S UriEl

Rates and government rent refunds

Mzt :
Notes :

(a)  BLE20251F6 /730 HILEE - FE BT B EAE £ A B B 8RBT ((E— T

 BEHTRESMTIIHI8) -

2025 2024
HETT EET
$million $million
2,488 2,566
(827) 0
1,661 2,566
397 360
414 474
0 0
38 39
48 47
2,558 3,486

=,

VAN

THTT (20244 4D [T

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the amounts of UGC recurrent block grant has been reduced by the refund of $826.6
million (2024: Nil) to the HKSAR Government. Details of the refund are set out in Note 18(a).

(b)  FEER - BRAHEN EIFE G BB (20244 - 4) -

No matching grants were launched by the government for UGC funded activities during the year (2024: Nil).

FIBRIFFRA
INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME

FIRUA

Interest income

FE N THEIEBWC R 2 AT & 2 A PEES) ()

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure (Note)

N THEE A TS TR Z M A Z R A

Investment income on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

AR A E 2 F e

Funds distribution from an associate

Wt : IR % CE AR BT 2 487 » ARG 2 EFEE -

Note : Amounts included realised / unrealised gain or loss and before deduction of fund management fee.

ERBRR R LA A
AUXILIARY SERVICES AND OTHER INCOME

BAEEE
Student hostels
THeA

Rental income

PO B S A

Rental contribution from staff

R ~ THE WA A EEB)

Services fees, workshop income and other sponsorships

HEHER) (& 16)
Project sponsorships (Note 16)

HETEUA

Miscellaneous

15

2025 2024
HETT EET
$million $million
105 105
1,388 976
1 1
2 2
1,496 1,084
2025 2024
HETT EET
$million $million
181 169
19 20
55 53
120 110
99 102
37 31
511 485

2024125 FEREI R




34 W
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE

BURFE BN R

Government subventions and grants

B~ SRR R H A

Tuition, programs and other fees

R R EUWA

Interest and net investment income

SIFERR

Donations and benefactions

BHEORES R A A

Auxiliary services and other income

HEBEHIEEE A ES

Transfers from deferred capital funds

BUR & B R 5K

Government subventions and grants

B SRR A

Tuition, programs and other fees

FERFHEAEUA

Interest and net investment income

HNFERR

Donations and benefactions

TR M A A

Auxiliary services and other income

HSBHREEAA S

Transfers from deferred capital funds

2025
&P EdEs
Revenue from contracts with customers
KSR ERE PR AR HA AR S qazg
recognised at a recognised over Revenue from other Total
point in time time sources ota
HHETT HETT EHETT EETT
$million $million $million $million
0 0 2,558 2,558
0 1,928 0 1,928
0 0 1,496 1,496
0 0 183 183
45 69 397 511
0 0 483 483
45 1,997 5,117 7,159
2024
FPEE
Revenue from contracts with customers
AR [ Rl s R E MR qaze
recognised at a recognised over Revenue from other Total
point in time time sources o
HETT HEIT HETT H#ETT
$million $million $million $million
0 0 3,486 3,486
0 1,714 0 1,714
0 0 1,084 1,084
0 0 163 163
44 65 376 485
0 0 354 354
44 1,779 5,463 7,286

University Financial Statements 2024/25
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35 B
EXPENDITURE

At B E ST HTEE R
N BAEF] Other Depreciation
Salaries and Operating and st
Benefits Expenses Amortisation Total
BHET BHETT BHET BHEJTT
$million $million $million Smillion
(HfEE3.6)
(Note 3.6)

£EFE / Year 2025
B - BT

Teaching, Learning and Research

BRI 2,684 1,259 241 4,184
Teaching and research

[ e 61 58 1 120
Library

R AR 89 64 26 179
Central computing facilities

HAt Z RS 108 39 1 148
Other academic services

/Nt 2,942 1,420 269 4,631
Sub-total

BB

Institutional Support

R — RS 307 270 3 580
Management and general

e A e 208 447 347 1,002
Premises and related expenses

B R — R RS 109 333 3 445
Student and general education services

HoAtIEE 1 34 0 35
Other activities

/Nt 625 1,084 353 2,062
Sub-total

Kl a 3,567 2,504 622 6,693
Total Expenditure

4EPE | Year 2024
B8 - B EHR

Teaching, Learning and Research

HER T 2,474 1,140 165 3,779
Teaching and research

B AR 60 57 1 118
Library

R R 86 128 19 233
Central computing facilities

HAt H RS 102 36 1 139
Other academic services

/Nt 2,722 1,361 186 4,269
Sub-total

BB

Institutional Support

R — RS 263 236 5 504
Management and general

R A RE 187 409 291 887
Premises and related expenses

B R — R RS 95 301 2 398
Student and general education services

HoAtIEE 1 31 0 32
Other activities

/Nt 546 977 298 1,821
Sub-total

HaRAZ 3,268 2,338 484 6,090
Total Expenditure

Frsi BRI EFE AR B SUE SRR B T BIFT S 2 Pt e (20244 © —LTF=H#7T) »
Included in salaries and benefits are the University’s contributions towards defined contribution retirement benefits schemes totalling $200 million
(2024: $193 million).

17
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3.6 HAEEZHIT
ANALYSIS OF OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2025 2024
BETT BETT
$Smillion Smillion

e - B R
Teaching, Learning and Research
—MRIANE [ BB [ Sl 783 764
General office / teaching and research expense / equipment
THZEE BB 584 546
Postgraduate studentships
VB £ B 5 ST 53 51
Library books and periodicals

1,420 1,361
BB 270 236
Management and General
& RAMER
Premises and Related Expenses
NI TFR RS 208 189
Utilities, cleaning and security service expenses
R RIRE [ /NUTRE 115 114
Repair and maintenance / minor works
2= A st e 58 59
Rates and government rent
— RO NEE /3 / VIZEIRE 66 47
General office expenses / equipment / property insurance

447 409
B4 —REERE
Student and General Education Services
1S KRS 148 122
Scholarships and bursary
(B 101 109
Residence halls
BETEE | AR T R RE 69 55
Student activities / medical and dental care for students
—fRI A EER / ai 15 15
General office expenses / equipment
333 301

HArEg 34 31
Other Activities

2,504 2,338

18
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A B TR
REMUNERATION OF HIGHER PAID STAFF

BI%H
Number of Employees
2025 2024

FHEEE

Annual Equivalent Remuneration

HKS$ 1,800,001 - 1,950,000 63 73
HKS$ 1,950,001 - 2,100,000 60 49
HKS$ 2,100,001 - 2,250,000 48 55
HKS$ 2,250,001 - 2,400,000 60 44
HKS$ 2,400,001 - 2,550,000 48 36
HKS$ 2,550,001 - 2,700,000 25 26
HKS$ 2,700,001 - 2,850,000 27 21
HKS$ 2,850,001 - 3,000,000 16 19
HKS$ 3,000,001 - 3,150,000 17 12
HKS$ 3,150,001 - 3,300,000 10 9
HKS$ 3,300,001 - 3,450,000 12 12
HKS$ 3,450,001 - 3,600,000 9 5
HKS$ 3,600,001 - 3,750,000 9 6
HKS$ 3,750,001 - 3,900,000 5 9
HKS$ 3,900,001 - 4,050,000 7 2
HKS$ 4,050,001 - 4,200,000 4 3
HKS$ 4,200,001 - 4,350,000 2 6
HKS$ 4,350,001 - 4,500,000 7 2
HKS$ 4,500,001 - 4,650,000 1 4
HKS$ 4,650,001 - 4,800,000 0 1
HKS$ 4,800,001 - 4,950,000 2 0
HKS$ 4,950,001 - 5,100,000 1 2
HKS$ 5,100,001 - 5,250,000 2 2
HKS$ 5,250,001 - 5,400,000 1 1
HKS$ 5,400,001 - 5,550,000 2 2
HKS$ 5,550,001 - 5,700,000 1 0
HKS$ 5,850,001 - 6,000,000 1 0
HKS$ 7,050,001 - 7,200,000 0 1
HKS$ 7,350,001 - 7,500,000 1 0

FrEETFrE ~ FTHINE ~ BT FIEGL X2 R ~ [ZERAMFEA - TEAEE
RGEE » FZE R BB I TEC BB 2T (5 (B I R & 2 R A= AR (H AT 5
Remuneration includes salaries, gratuities, contributions to retirement schemes, consultancy fees paid by
the University, housing and other benefits. For staff who are provided with quarters, their housing benefits
are calculated by reference to the rateable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department of the
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

FIH
TAX

REFEIRE (BRI 5 88 Fr HEEER RN HIE - IR IR LR -
No tax is provided for operations of the University that meet the exemption criteria under
Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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6.

WIsE ~ thes Rakth

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

5%
COST

20234E7 1 H 2 &6k
Balance as at 1 July 2023

NE
Additions

s
Transfers
R
Disposals

2024456 H30H K7 H 1 H Z 565
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

NE
Additions

s
Transfers
R
Disposals

202546 F 30 H 2 4585
Balance as at 30 June 2025

RETE
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

20234E7 1 H 2 &6k
Balance as at 1 July 2023

RELFTE AT
Charge for the year
ik

Disposals

202446 H30H K7 H 1 H Z 565
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

RELFTE AT
Charge for the year
ik

Disposals

202546 F 30 H 2 4585
Balance as at 30 June 2025

IRERE
NET BOOK VALUE

202546 F 30 H 2 4585
Balance as at 30 June 2025

20244F6 F30H 2 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2024

University Financial Statements 2024/25

BFEE - RBIR
RRBFEAS
Building
improvements,
ERTH major equipment BREKR M

B Construction and services Fixtures and s

Buildings in progress systems equipment Total

BET BEETT HETT EET HETT

$million $million $million $million $million

7,101 925 2,216 2,532 12,774
1 788 3 455 1,247
0 (216) 216 0 0
0 0 0 (105) (105)
7,102 1,497 2,435 2,882 13,916
0 883 8 321 1,212
1,016 (1,566) 525 25 0
0 0 (8) (104) (112)
8,118 814 2,960 3,124 15,016
3,054 0 453 2,079 5,586
143 0 118 206 467
0 0 0 (105) (105)
3,197 0 571 2,180 5,948
147 0 145 305 597
0 0 @) (103) (107)
3,344 0 712 2,382 6,438
4,774 814 2,248 742 8,578
3,905 1,497 1,864 702 7,968
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Ik ~ Mes heatls (80)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

RELEBEFERERL S A T EERHITEHE ( "TEHENE ) ) BUrEgeeUisttd - B
+ /U 220476 H30H -

The University campus is situated on approximately 60 hectares of land in Sai Kung under lease from the
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) at a nominal rent for 58 years
through 30 June 2047.

FABFEBUFHZ S B et TR IR AR R =TI E L F IR 2 T F Ry i — B2 A4 fE & 2
» BT > 22062212 H208 i -

A piece of land situated in Tseung Kwan O of approximately 3,490 square metres was granted to the
University by the Government of the HKSAR at a nominal rent for the construction of a student hostel for a
lease of 50 years up to 20 December 2062.

DLEZYI5E ~ tas Sk i bt (AR FRITEE AT -

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as follows:

i S5 504
Buildings 50 years
TR ~ REIRA R i 550 20 B E I - DI & R
Building improvements, major equipment and services systems Shorter of 20 years or the lease term
R B et HEFHHSUZE 4 - DI E Rt
Fixtures and equipment Shorter of the projects lives or 4-10

years

21
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7. EEEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EatiLigEs
Computer software

BHET

$million

B2
COST

20234E7H1H 2 4565 138
Balance as at 1 July 2023

NE
Additions 7

202446 H30H K7 H 1 H 2 4568 145
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

NE 11
Additions

LR (6)

Disposals

202546 F30H ~ 4565 150
Balance as at 30 June 2025

ﬁ\ N
AMORTISATION

20237 H 1 H Z &gk 122
Balance as at 1 July 2023

AR 8

Amortisation charge for the year

20246 H30H K7 H 1 H 2 4565 130
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

AR 8

Amortisation charge for the year

LR (6)

Disposals

202546 H30H 2 4h6s 132
Balance as at 30 June 2025

FRREHE
NET BOOK VALUE

202546 H30H 2 4h6s 18
Balance as at 30 June 2025

202446 H30H 2 4h6% 15
Balance as at 30 June 2024

BT E AT 25 % T E Y -

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis at 25% per annum.
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HE

Leases

2025 2024
Sl BT

Smillion $million

(eI

Right-of-use assets

=8

105 84

Buildings

HEAM®

Lease liabilities

TEHE A S 18 9

Current lease liabilities

JEREHE Al 94 72
Non-current lease liabilities

112 81

AR T (R E B =T\ E 8T (20244 NTEHET) -
Additions to the right-to-use assets for the year ended 30 June 2025 were $38 million (2024: $87 million).

THEREDETT REAL

The lease liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

A 2R R A HE A BT S A S0

Amounts related to leases recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

#reg 17 9
Depreciation
BB A 6 2
Finance cost

AR SRR 6 10

Expenses relating to short-term leases

29 21

REE FyrK I N AVFH EEE) S A0 H AR

The University’s leasing activities as lessee and how these are accounted for

REFAAFFEYIZE - HAEH &R —ZEUERNEEHEY - AU ST SORIRE TR I R ERIRA B - REEHER
R E R RS SRR ST (O AT - AENHZERIEIRER - RS FIRECR R - THE Rl s B TS E T2 - Fri
EHEET GRS M AR -

The University leases various buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 4 years. Some leases include an
option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract term. The University assess at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any onerous covenants. Leased assets will not be used
as security for borrowing purposes.

AEEEE AN A IR
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

2025 2024
BET HET
$million $million
THI1HZ & 81 6
Balance as at 1 July
NE 41 79
Addition
FER ERIERA 6 2
Non-cash finance cost
STHE AR (16) 6
Payment of lease liabilities
6 H30H 2 456% 112 81

Balance as at 30 June

23
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9. REMEMHBEE
FINANCIAL ASSETS RELATING TO INVESTMENTS

KRG 77
Equity securities
iR o T
Listed equity securities, at market value

IF ErReERE s o A (M a)

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value (Note a)

PEEAMERRY]
Presentation in the balance sheet

FN A BB H A A UGER SR Z W A

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

BN EEBBCGUR B EE (s b)
Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure (Note b)

iR
Listed equity funds

FE i
Unlisted equity funds

EEEWA RS

Listed fixed income funds

Ik BB AR
Unlisted fixed income funds

FE ETEYES

Unlisted real assets funds

EI S F Sl iPr
Unlisted hedge funds

FE EHRARE

Unlisted private investments

bR R

Listed convertible bonds

DU i £ LB T R B TT R AL

2025 2024
EET BET
$million $million
22 16
517 530
539 546
539 546
613 447
3,912 3,838
2,208 2,196
1,645 1,476
1,030 984
1,685 1,468
1272 1,065
18 18
12,383 11,492

The above categories of financial assets are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

fifs
Notes :

(a)  LNFLETGZ I B TG (LA B2 R TR~ P R P o 7025 R T RE

The fair value was determined by reference to the financial models based on discounted cash flow analysis, earnings multiple and net equity

method with reference to market valuations for similar entities.

(b)  LVFIE G2 TG A E T

The fair value was determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets or by fund managers.

University Financial Statements 2024/25
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10. BEREEAT

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2025 2024
BET BHETT
$million $million
Ik LI HE A 9 9
Unlisted shares, at cost
BAtER
E502 Proportion of
Z EEalidasi kit Nominal Value of
)i =NEIE 2 Form of Place of Issued Capital AR
Name of Business Incorporation Directly Held by Class of FEEF
Associate Structure and Operation the University Shares Held Principal Activity
TR EE BRI R A NEAL g A RILAIE 33% AR EITREGEEL - BERAE - Rt
WRERIRGITE B RS - S5l SR A
BRATEEA -
PKU-HKUST Institutional People’s Republic Capital To engage in technology
Shenzhen-Hong Organization of China Contribution commercialization, incubation of start-
Kong up companies, provision of research
Institution and technology management services,

25

training of senior management and
administrative executives.
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11. BERNBAE
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2025 2024
BET HET
Smillion $million
Ik B RAE 32 21
Unlisted shares, at cost
WA
MRS / ER Proportion of
Place / Country Nominal Value
i) 72| of of Issued / Registered Capital EEEH)
Subsidiary Incorporation Held by the University Principal Activity
HETE R
Direct Indirect
TR U SRR TR A E] i 100% - AEE)
HKUST College of Lifelong Learning Hong Kong Dormant
Limited
AR AHEARAT A 100% - AEE)
HKUST Properties Limited Hong Kong Dormant
Redbird Innovation Fund Limited i - S TERHM IS  FHELRIRTED) -
Hong Kong Note To engage in other professional, scientific and
technical
FARR SR ERR S RRARAE - 100% - fita gt
HKUST Industry and Education Hong Kong Investment holding
Development Corporation Limited
R KR ARAT i 100% - FENFBRERT=AMNE - BUTRRHIREEL
Hong Kong University of Science and Hong Kong ERET G ~ ST - ATIWHL - PSEEE DR
Technology R and D Corporation HEMFE R MR -
Limited To engage in technology commercialisation including
industrial contracting, licensing, incubation of start-up
N AR RS A TR A EE A RILHIE - 100% companies, property management and research and
HKUST R and D Corporation People’s technical services, especially in Hong Kong and the
(Guangzhou) Limited Republic of Pearl River Delta Area.
China
HBRERIZERE (I AIRAF e N RILFIE - 100%
HKUST R and D Corporation People’s
(Shenzhen) Limited Republic of
China
N B AR R EIE AR 7E HEE N RILFIE - 100% ILRRBEINEYY » BUTHRHL AR RS > DU S IR
Guangzhou HKUST Fok Ying Tung People’s VES) BB AWML R R G B R L
Research Institute Republic of I PFTBHEAVRHY AL - DUREEE A BRIRAA EY
China Bl -
Station in Guangzhou (Nansha), to engage in
technology innovation and development as well as
entrepreneurship activities including startup
incubation, and commercialisation of technologies
developed in Clear Water Bay and Nansha campuses,
as well as training of management and technology
personnel.
EHERHUR BRI e e A RALFIE 100% - LRI HEIREBAEN YRS ~ Bl B~ B
HKUST Shenzhen Research Institute People’s BREE R AIES -
Republic of Station in Shenzhen, to facilitate the University’s
China education, training, research, technology development
and entrepreneurship activities in the Mainland.
BB RH A B 7 AU e g N R 100% - TLRAEYIEHE - GBI - 8 BT
HKUST Shenzhen - Hong Kong People’s - RHSBAS RAIES -
Collaborative  Innovation Research Republic of Station in Shenzhen Futian District, to facilitate the
Institute China University’s education, training, research, technology
development and entrepreneurship activities in the
Mainland.
HERK (BB ERREERRERAIR chig A RLFIE] - 100% IR B BT REAENMATEE - 853l PSR R
&l WELEBS -
HKUST Industry and Education People’s Station in Shanghai, to facilitate the University’s
Development Corporation (Shanghai) Republic of education, training, research and incubation activities
Limited China in the Mainland.
IERIRERR A T g A RILFIE - 100%
Hong Kong University of Science and People’s
Technology Shanghai Center Republic of
China
#t EAERERAIRAE  ILAFMEA -
Note: This company is limited by gurantee without share capital.
26

University Financial Statements 2024/25



12.

FEBHRR R TR 3R
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS

2025 2024
BHET BHEIT
$million $million

JEUSHEK 792 686
Accounts receivable
TENROE A% 124 63
Prepayments and deposits
JRE LTt o > E K 162 129
Amounts due from subsidiaries

1,078 878

FEUSCRAT a6 2 SRR A E TR, S R i R & T BE A -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are interest free, unsecured and are payable on demand.

RELFEFATR BV S AERIEE 9 SRAVASIETT% - DUBWORRY I TH RS 1R T SR -
The University applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach using a lifetime expected loss allowance
to measure loss allowance of accounts receivable.

Rt BTN EERE - TEYORCI R E SRR R al D84l - FEER iR A
ARFEE SRSIREE - a2 BREOR N R E ARSI R 2 M TR B TR (MEEX
) © R20256R6 301 - SN TRIIRSIRIAEA - MFEAEVRI RSB - ARSI FE
ERFFA TR -

To measure the expected credit losses, account receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are estimated based on the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced, adjusted with the expected change between
current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors, if material. As at 30 June
2025, no loss allowance is required on these accounts receivable as the expected credit losses are
immaterial. The University does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RER I FECHR F S e ] 2 28K ST — AR Ple] « FRARORIR TR AT — 4 RS R B
% o

The majority of accounts receivable are with no fixed terms of payment and are expected to be
recoverable within one year. Prepayments are expected to be recognised as expenses within one
year.

FEUTHRRK ~ TR ROR R LU T B T R BRAL

The accounts receivable and prepayments and deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or
United States Dollars.
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13.  BRERIRITIK
CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

2025 2024
BHEL HEL
$million $million

JFEH B =8 B 2 2 iR
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity over Three Months
RENER Y 2,290 1,699
Current portion
FEREE > 0 0
Non-Current portion

2,290 1,699
B N FH
Cash and cash equivalents
JRESAE R =8 H 8T Z E MK 758 796
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months
B RS T4 R 108 72
Cash at banks and in hand

866 868

g 3,156 2,567
Total
B R SRT R L T Y W BB AL
Cash and deposits with banks are denominated in the following currencies:
Hong Kong Dollars 7T 2,240 2,382
United States Dollars 27T 806 92
Renminbi NG 51 37
Euro E G 43 19
Pounds Sterling B 3 33
Others HAth 13 4

3,156 2,567
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14.

15.

FESS R R P ST B
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

2025 2024
BT BETT
$million $million
EHIAf (i) 727 475
Contract liabilities (Note a)
FEAS R B FER T2 F 619 561
Accounts payable and accruals
JER BRI AL ESR (FEb) 827 0
Amount of unspent recurrent grants refundable (Note b)
A B B8 2 BRI 1 1
Amount due to a subsidiary
2,174 1,037
K RERTRO ST E IR EhE (23) 0
Less: Non-Current portion of Accounts Payable and Accruals
FEASRRK B S T8 R Bl (73
Current portion of Accounts Payable and Accruals 2,151 1,037

FE TR R RS 2 F LU T R AL

The accounts payable and accruals are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Wi
Notes :

() Ggycfi (BE © FEBGK ~ IRAEWA) YR REIFHTERUIHREE BUGS - CREUEETT (2024 4:
PEETAEETT) GYABRTHEHE—ENHET AU -
The contract liabilities for receipts in advance and deferred revenue are recognised as revenue in the periods when
the performance obligations are fulfilled. $704 million (2024: $475 million) contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as income within one year.

PRI A GLI ARG ERTFE PIRERD Foas 474 453
Revenue recognised during the year that was included in
the contract liability balance at the beginning of the years

(b) HEEBATAREN A B RPR B B BB BUF IS - AR SERRIEEBE T 18() » TR TRESE
IR —F PR HAR S H SRR Bh & 0k -
The amount of unspent recurrent grants refundable represents the amount to be refunded to the HKSAR
Government. Further details of such refund are set out in Note 18(a). The amount refundable is expected to be
settled within one year, through the deduction from subsequent monthly grant releases.

B ETAIEE

PROVISION FOR STAFF BENEFITS

2025 2024
BT BETT
$million $million
EONTH 153 131
Gratuities
A B Feth 119 99
Leave pay and others
272 230
FERSTS -
Payable:
—HR 226 179
Within 1 year
—Ei& 46 51
After 1 year
272 230
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16. EFEURE

DEFERRED INCOME
BURA R
BEEREEEK FEEERK
Ea-ig | BHZEEC SR Earmarked
BEEEK UGC Earmarked  Grants from JHEBE
UGC Block Grants/ Research  Government Project k514 et
Grant Matching Grants Agencies Sponsorships Donation Total
HET HETL BETT HET HETL BHETT
$million $million $million $million $million $million
202347 H 1 H 2 &6k 0 1,347 403 163 943 2,856
Balance as at 1 July 2023
E / EUZ 705 2,685 700 373 114 280 4,152
Amount received / receivable (G0
(Note)
A EHEUEEE (MEE3.1/33/719) (2,566) (399) (474) (102) (102) (3,643)
Credited to statement of comprehensive
income (Notes 3.1/3.3/19)
IR IE AR (HTRE 17) (119) (670) (4) (33) (236) (1,062)
Transfer to deferred capital funds (Note 17)
20244£6 H30H R 7H 1 H 2 4564 0 978 298 142 885 2,303
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024
EM /e FOH 2,017 886 282 162 504 3,851
Amount received / receivable (G0
(Note)
s AEHE S (MEE3.1/33/719) (1,661) (435) (414) 99) (132) (2,741)
Credited to statement of comprehensive
income (Notes 3.1/3.3/19)
HERER AR (3 17) (356) (354) (1) (26) (1 (848)
Transfer to deferred capital funds (Note 17)
202546 H30H Z 456k 0 1,075 165 179 1,146 2,565
Balance as at 30 June 2025
HFEEIE
To be recognised
202446 H30H 4585
Balance as at 30 June 2024
—ER 0 575 239 142 730 1,686
In one year
—iFi& 0 403 59 0 155 617
After one year
0 978 298 142 885 2,303
202546 H30H 4585
Balance as at 30 June 2025
—ER 0 686 157 179 994 2,016
In one year
—iFi& 0 389 8 0 152 549
After one year
0 1,075 165 179 1,146 2,565

5 BRI (W19 ) -
Note: The amounts were from pledged donations (Note 19).

5

Courtesy acknowledgement

BV 2025 4E6 /730 H 1L F/EHTITH CIEE B BTG B2 s AR IR C T A Ff 37T (2024 4F - EFALE/L-#37C) -
Donations for the year ended 30 June 2025 included approximately $75.5 million (2024 879.9 million) received from the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust.
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BRERAEE
DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS

BHET

$million

202347 H 1 H Z 4568 5,163
Balance as at 1 July 2023

MHERREYZE - s St RS 2 g i BRI U (HFEE 16) 1,062
Amounts equivalent to additions to property, plant and equipment and computer software
transferred from deferred income (Note 16)

FHE T HTEE R H 2 FOHE R 2 s & (354)
Amounts equivalent to depreciation and amortisation charges transferred to statement of
comprehensive income

20244E6 H30H K7 H 1 H Z &g 5,871
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

FHEREYIZE ~ P et s B 2 R B R s (M 16) 848
Amounts equivalent to additions to property, plant and equipment and computer software
transferred from deferred income (Note 16)

FHE TR S H 2 O 2 2 s = (483)
Amounts equivalent to depreciation and amortisation charges transferred to statement of
comprehensive income

202576 H30H 2 456R 6,236
Balance as at 30 June 2025
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18.

BHEGES - REMES R MRS
UGC FUNDS, RESTRICTED FUNDS AND OTHER FUNDS

202347 [ 1 H 456
Balance as at 1 July 2023

REERER/ (R
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

FEUNAE A A A 2 T s 5 IR Y R RS 23 R B B 2 sl
Unrealised loss on equity securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income

g (2) | BEAES

Transfer (to) / from capital funds

B
Inter-fund transfer

20245E6 30 H R F 1 H 2 #i6:
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

RERE (FF8) | Bibk
(Deficit) / Surplus for the year

FON P B A 2 I s 5 IR A RS e R B B 2 W
Unrealised income on equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

TR PR A H A e T s T R R RE 75
Transfer of realised gain on equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income

i (7)) | HERESE
Transfer (to) / from capital funds

B i
Inter-fund transfer

2025476 H30H Z 4565
Balance as at 30 June 2025

Bk -
Notes:

—R B REEHES PRI B G REERN - PERN CBEE R =) SRR SRR EROHE — R R S R R R SRR AR E R AL 7 BN 20% BIR o (4 — RO SR G R R UGS s 2 SRR B IR EIR B IR TR - 2022-25 = FIAVEE A
o &%/ B TNEATE TR ENIH

(a)

F52024-25 - {51 - EHEGH20255-2 726 Hp B BERREUF2025- 26 FF T BTHE RS TN - BHEGTHITAZH

LEGES FRIEEES HAtrEE
UGC Funds Restricted Funds Other Funds
BATEEE
HHAN LTI
2SR FA 5
HEELE
—f R HREE Financial
BEE B HA [T Assets at
Generaland  Research Matching Grants BEES FEEHER EFES E[Siti=End FVOCI HAES
Development Projects and  BHZAESE HAt Capital - HEES Designated Capital /gt Unspecified  Revaluation Capital HAt /g #st
Reserve Others Endowments Others Funds Sub-total Endowments Donations Funds Sub-total Donations Reserve Funds Others Sub-total Total
HET HET HE HET HEL HETT HETL HETL HETL HETL HETT BET HET HET HETT HET
$million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million $million
1,989 410 527 1,311 48 4,285 1,811 135 9 1,955 391 404 1,984 3,718 6,497 12,737
397 (136) 26 57 0 344 169 (17) 0 152 80 0 0 620 700 1,196
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 126 0 0 126 126
0 0 0 (118) 118 0 3 0 3) 0 39 0 (44) 5 0 0
(89) 89 0 0 0 0 (68) 73 0 5 0 0 0 %) %) 0
2,297 363 553 1,250 166 4,629 1,915 191 6 2,112 510 530 1,940 4,338 7,318 14,059
(710) (133) 37 95 0 (711) 200 (20) 0 180 169 0 0 828 997 466
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 15 15
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (22) 0 22 0 0
0 0 0 (19) 19 0 1 1 ?2) 0 50 0 231 (281) 0 0
(102) 102 0 0 0 0 (10) 74 0 64 (54) 0 0 (10) (64) 0
1,485 332 590 1,326 185 3,918 2,106 246 4 2,356 675 523 2,171 4,897 8,266 14,540

LR Ry B 222025476 H 30 H L FEHE G R ELERIRVEAD (HRE3.1) -
General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent UGC Block Grants. The balance of the GDREF at the end of a funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20% of the University’s approved Block Grants for that funding period.
Should the balance of the GDRF at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the excess amount is refundable to the UGC. The last year of 2022-25 triennium was 2024-25. In addition, further to the UGC’s press release dated 26 February 2025 in response to the 2025-26 Budget of the HKSAR Government, the
UGC have conducted a review of the level of GDRF balances of all UGC-funded universities and in June 2025 confirmed that the University has to refund on a one-off basis a total of $826.6 million (“the refund”). The refund of $826.6 million has been recognised as a reduction of UGC recurrent block grant for the year ended 30

June 2025 (Note 3.1).

(b) BAFEIEE RH M 7 20 @R SR H SR SR SORp i (208 BRI TR -

Research Projects and Others represent UGC Block Grant set aside for individual research projects and start-up fund to new faculty members to support their research work.

BESHEERR R B4 SO EHE G T L dah - MRIBECE G MRy - HhEE R AN S G HilEA 2GS -
Matching Grants represent unspent funds from UGC’s Matching Grant Schemes. According to the rules and regulations promulgated by the UGC, these funds have to be used for activities within UGC ambit.

(©)

(d

BAEES AN R BRI FH A RO R A SR B R S H DA AR A 2SR R B E G ) -

ey

HEH

BN KRBT R SR TR AR e A R KA ThRET - IDFA20254E6 F RERRAERH — MR

Endowments represent the funds which the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep the principal intact and only use income generated from the fund to support designated activities of the University.

(¢) FEEFKBISHNANEEES) - SREUHE (TR (RS -

Designated Donations represent funds earmarked for specific activities, programs or projects of the University, other than for construction of buildings.

() REESTWYIE - HE R R IS 2 IREDFE - R E NS N CREME R (AU R R A A -

Capital Funds represent the net book value of property, plant and equipment as well as computer software which are acquired with recognised but unspent Government grants or donations or other income retained in the fund balances.

(€3]

(h) BAPEEBRMSEERSTIRNMBREEGEE 2 FEER M R N TR B R 2 A EEEES: 2 REH R -

(@)

FRfE R IS E RN A -

Unspecified Donations represent general donations without donor-specified purposes.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) Revaluation Reserve represents the fair value gain or loss of financial assets at FVOCI.

Eatie g NS IR G

Other Funds represent funds generated from self-financing activities.
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19.

AR

PLEDGED DONATIONS
2025 2024

BET BEJT

$million $million
7 THARE Z 5080 1,062 639
Outstanding amount as at 1 July
BT KRR 299 764
New pledges
AT Z IR W B R (M3t a) 51 (61)
Amount received during the year and recognised directly in statement of
comprehensive income (Note a)
RT3 AR AT (T 16) (504) (280)
Amounts received during the year credited to deferred income (Note 16)
TEARE T Z 1B (555) (341)
Total amount received during the year
6 H30H R B 7 806 1,062
Outstanding amount as at 30 June
Wit Ca) -
Note (a):

2025 2024

HRA E#TT BT
Donation Income Smillion Smillion
TR EEYCIL T i 78 EL PR~ AR 51 61
Amount of pledged donations received during the year and recognised directly in
statement of comprehensive income
TEAIA B EE Y s WETEIL LA R [T o et 2 AR H (Mt 16 ) 132 102
Amount of pledged donations initially credited to deferred income and
subsequently recognised in statement of comprehensive income during the year
(Note 16)
TERGESE LI R IFNA (5B 5 HD 183 163

Total donation income recognised in statement of comprehensive income during
the year (page 5)
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20. HEEBREE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

201 ERTESE
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

M EE

Financial assets

TR RAST B BB E

Financial assets at amortised cost

VST a8 2 IR

Amounts due from subsidiaries

FEWTHR RN R 3%

Accounts receivable and deposits

JFEIH H =8 H 2 E K

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months

W Je F R

Cash and cash equivalents

A HEEBHA S RS R B &

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

BAHEEBICGEOR B & E

Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure

CUEE =

Financial liabilities

HAFE A AR I B B (R

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

HEAE

Lease liabilities

FEARROR st

Accounts payable and accruals

A B a8 2 SIRKIH

Amount due to a subsidiary

University Financial Statements 2024/25

2025 2024
HET HET
$million $million
162 129
804 694
2,290 1,699
866 868
539 546
12,383 11,492
17,044 15,428
112 81
1,415 486
1 1
1,528 568




20.

20.2

MEERREE (8)

SRTREEZ RS

RELEH R Z SEM R - arisils (iR
VE\ ~ IR S (BRI )~ (FE S B E)
Bl o R i R R 5 T
I RETHRTINZR 5 [REHY 32 BB R (A N HE TS ]
DIOREIAREN BRI BHE A I B 2 iR (K -
REATHECE T IS SOk I i B R AT h e s
SN -

(a) HEERE

()

GRS ~ R R SRR S i i
S PR T 5 | B % e L ERS 1R B -
AAREARZ T T 2K B A&
A - ARBREOERAES - H5 - H
YHEERE S ~ WS - RASE FOEIIE
o ARELREE S R A M & LU ORI A
FEE A oy B o (RIS R S
TEIRR FOREN & © AANEES NS B R
TR B E RIS - AR
EEEMEK T EEE TR -

SHE R

RER S SN R\ g £ R E R S
FITEHERE - HRE TSt - R
TR T B S T RS b A A B R

HHIRIEN S BRI EH SR8
b HILIEHE B T g2 aisn
B o JATRE G I EA Y R e E B
FOEFTRRET - DT B A T2k -

#20255E6 H30H » DUETT ~ 250 ~ AR R
HA AN SRS EELI 7 AL 4E R
BEEMATI1.2% (20244E5517.8%) ~ 85.9% (
20244 5579.8% ) ~ 0.3% (20244FE50.2%) K
2.6% (20244F52.2%)

REN R R DM HERIA B AR - MRy
N FEU B A 7 o

20.

20.2
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
University's overall risk management focuses on controlling
the impact arising from unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the University's financial performance by engaging external
professional advisors. The Administration of the University
assumes the day-to-day risk management responsibility and
monitors regularly the risk exposures of the University.

(a) Market risk

)

Market risk represents the risk that the value of
financial assets will decrease as a result of movements
in market variables such as foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates and stock prices. The University
is exposed to market risk mainly through the
investment funds it holds. The University's
investments comprise equities, debt securities, real
assets investment funds, hedged funds, private
investments and fixed deposits. The investment
strategy of the University is to invest prudently in
order to preserve capital and achieve optimal risk
diversification while generating a stable return over
the long term and the required liquidity. The
University employs external professional advisors and
investment managers to manage a significant portion
of its investments, and delegates to the Finance Office
of the University to manage fixed deposits and some
of the fixed income instruments.

Foreign currency risk

The University is exposed to foreign currency risks
primarily arising from its United States dollars
(“USD”) denominated investments that are managed
by investment managers. As HKD is pegged to the
USD, the University considers the risk from
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and
USD to be insignificant.

Since currency movements tend to have a much
smaller impact on portfolio performance in the long
run, no hedging for non-USD currency exposure will
be arranged under normal circumstances. Such
currency exposure management policy is subject to
periodic review and hedging may be arranged when
situation warrants.

As at 30 June 2025, the percentages of financial
assets denominated in HKD, USD, RMB and other
currencies to total financial assets were 11.2% (2024:
17.8%), 85.9% (2024: 79.8%), 0.3% (2024: 0.2%)
and 2.6% (2024: 2.2%), respectively.

The University does not have material financial
liabilities denominated in foreign currency and
considers the related foreign exchange risk
immaterial.
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20.

20.2

MEBEEEE (8

SR TREEZ R (8
(@) TIREE (&)
(i) FPEERE

(iii)

(®)

NERFR AR =2 T ROR (2R P 2R B i
Wr o PRUE Sk A2 = (18 H 2=+ i 5 N E]
W FrAE bR o s T B H Ok
R M TTERONR TS MR T
o REEEEE2025F6 H 30 H (R RE A &
B S —THE ZETT (

04 F—TZHATHEIT) -

1E1S

NERHIE 2 SR (E RS b T Sk B e
FTE A E RS - SRR A
BN ETS ~ 175 ARSI 1A A E B
° JR2025EE6 H30H - EERS LIt TN ERS %
TEHAMATA SRR R B T - AR
2025526 H30H (LA FEH B e &, el
HIREUTNE—TEIT (20245 R EE—
HiLHETT) -

ELEE

N F e R N EEH S - B
TR~ TEWOHRRK ~ 2 AT T B 2 I
N HEE B A RTINS B
Btz N HEE B IR & E -

N2 (FE e T+ 2R H R - B
RN 2 BB RIS 2098 > A
AR A T A B SO BRI A A

Bl N S FIBR S RO E ST ST IO P
(ARG TRESR S e 2 T
J5 o {EESEIATST B 2 IS A ~ 1A HEE
A S R TR 2 P55 T KA AR
BB ECIR & R i g4 bl

RENTHEBEEPEFERRE > REZHHT
75 > w B -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)
(ii)  Interest rate risk

(iii)

(b

The University is exposed to interest rate risk in
relation to its fixed deposits and bond securities. As
the fixed deposits usually mature within three to
twelve months, the risk exposure is considered not
material. If bank deposit interest rates had been 50
basis points higher / lower, with all other variables
held constant, the University’s surplus for the year
ended 30 June 2025 would increase / decrease by
approximately $15.2 million (2024: $12.5 million).

Price risk

The University is mainly exposed to securities price
risk from its investments managed by investment
managers. Securities price risk is managed by
diversification of investments in different markets,
sectors and assets types. At 30 June 2025, if the
prices of the respective investments had been 5%
higher / lower, with all other variables held constant,
the University's surplus for the year ended 30 June
2025 would increase / decrease by approximately
$646.1 million (2024: $601.9 million).

Credit risk

The University's principal financial assets are cash

and cash equivalents, bank deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through income and expenditure.

The University's credit risk is primarily attributable to
its accounts receivable. The amounts represented in
the balance sheet are net of loss allowance, estimated
by the University's management based on past
experience and their assessment of the current
economy.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are
placed with counterparties with credit-ratings of
investment grade or above assigned by international
credit-ratings agencies. Financial assets at amortised
cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through income and expenditure are rated
investment grade or above.

The University has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.
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20.2
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MEERREE (8)
ERTREEZRE (8

b)) EEEE (&)

{3 T4 T R4S H RRE B TA B S S E R
EREE AT HIAREZ EER RS R
MEEARE TR EENIREE

122025 K2 2024426 H30H » REHRIBEE B
A O SRHERD AL SR E AR IRHE -

() JBEZEE

AAREHREM A BN H REEE &+
AW - EEREE R TE > SRS
FAERTER & B e B I H R TSR HIKE > B
JERTHH &R -

BAEE

RIS A O - RIS RIS
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PRt -
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HHEAGERAL (F D I -
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20.

20.2

20.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

The University's maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations as at balance sheet date in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
balance sheet.

The University assessed that there is no significant
loss allowance in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 30
June 2025 and 2024.

(c) Liquidity risk

Most of the University's liabilities are due within
twelve months from the respective balance sheet date.
To manage the liquidity risk, the University monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents to
fulfill the normal liquidity needs.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The University's funds consist of UGC funds, restricted
funds and other funds, which are set up for various
designated purposes as described in note 18. It is the
University's objective to maintain sufficient funds to
support the University's current and future operating
expenditure requirements. The University's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The University manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities.
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20.  HAgERRER (8D
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

204 APEMGRE
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

() DIAPEFIRASRIEE

Financial assets carried at fair value

PUTF AR M & A B R A PR R 2 AR SR T E 5387 N HIA R B4R
The tables below provide an analysis of the University’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, grouped by level of the
following fair value measurement:

o MHEEERAMEERNSZH®E (F—F50

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

o BRTHEFGFEEZEEN  ZEENA TBREER - W AESESRHE (BE5R0)

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2)

o HENAFILIFE TEE TGS 220k (B=F400

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3)

B B BEEHG dazt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HHETT HHETT EHETT HE#IT
$million $million $million $million
14202546 H30H
As at 30 June 2025
BN HEBBUC ER Z MBS
Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure
- ISR 613 0 0 613
Listed equity funds
- EISGs 2 2,572 1,340 0 3912
Unlisted equity funds
- b E AR 2,208 0 0 2,208
Listed fixed income funds
- Ik EEEUWR AR S 318 657 670 1,645
Unlisted fixed income funds
- JE bHTEYESE 0 673 357 1,030
Unlisted real assets funds
- JE A 0 1,685 0 1,685
Unlisted hedge funds
- JEEWmRAKE 0 0 1,272 1,272
Unlisted private investments
- AR R 2R 18 0 0 18
Listed convertible bonds
5,729 4,355 2,299 12,383
HAHE BB A S TR YR B
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
- b iR ERE R 22 0 0 22
Listed equity securities
- JEEWREE S 0 0 517 517
Unlisted equity securities
22 0 517 539
5,751 4,355 2,816 12,922
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20.

20.4

MBEEEE (&)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

ATHEMGE (8D
FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (CONT’D)

() DAHEFRRAISHEE (8)

Financial assets carried at fair value (Cont’d)

FER BER BEER Hast
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BHETT HHETT EHHETT HHETT
$million $million $million $million
7202446 H30H
As at 30 June 2024
FATHEE B ORI &
Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure
- AR 447 0 0 447
Listed equity funds
- JE LR & 2,665 1,173 0 3,838
Unlisted equity funds
- AEE AT 2,196 0 0 2,196
Listed fixed income funds
- Ik LS E AR 298 593 585 1,476
Unlisted fixed income funds
- Ik LB 0 644 340 984
Unlisted real assets funds
- e LIPS 0 1,468 0 1,468
Unlisted hedge funds
- Ik EmRAEE 0 0 1,065 1,065
Unlisted private investments
- LT S 18 0 0 18
Listed convertible bonds
5,624 3,878 1,990 11,492
TN THE BB A RS T IR 5 e
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
- LT 16 0 0 16
Listed equity securities
- Ik iR 7 0 0 530 530
Unlisted equity securities
16 0 530 546
5,640 3,878 2,520 12,038

JEIE = BRI H TEA A AT S BB AR (2 s H S RCE » AR AR Z SR 5T -

The fair value of the financial instruments under Level 2 is determined by reference to the prices at the reporting date provided by the investment
managers and have been translated using the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

JEIAEE = AR TR A BTy 2 IR S B A5 (N DR SR TR ~ BRI BRI HE 25 77 A0 R AL T B o -

The fair value of the financial instruments under Level 3 is determined by reference to the financial models based on discounted cash flow analysis,
earnings multiple and net equity method with reference to market valuations for similar entities.

FEEFRI S TR EE RS R TR RIE Ll AT -

Level 3 financial instruments include investments in unlisted companies by the University and its investment managers.

REEN - R SRR LSS R N P EET RN Y B o W R A A - O RS A TS = Y A AR SR A S

During the year, there was no transfer of the financial investments between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
classifications.

BAPEA RS =SB TRNEN S8

The movements of the Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value during the year are as follows:

2025 2024
HET HEIT
$million $million
THIHZ 458k 2,520 2,104
Balance as at 1 July
A 344 335
Acquisitions
oo (246) (147)
Disposals
Bt AR RN BRI 198 228
Net gains recognised in statement of comprehensive income
6H30H 24kt 2,816 2,520
Balance as at 30 June
Bt AR U R AN H A S TS 2 5 BRI EH 9 127

Net gains for the year included in statement of comprehensive income,

under other comprehensive income

Bt AR RANFE RO TR Z 5 B FILEEH 189 101
Net gains for the year included in statement of comprehensive income,

under interest and net investment income
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21. KiE

COMMITMENTS
2025 2024
HET EET
$million $million
(a) EAEIE
Capital Commitments
(1) PR BRI B R A RS - HEs S R TIVE A0RYE
Outstanding capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
[wh ) 1,526 1,642
Contracted for
[SEEsedi JEILES ) 3,443 3,456
Authorised but not contracted for
4,969 5,098
(i)  DUN BRI B EERE R A M B BRI TR E AR
Outstanding capital commitments in respect of financial assets not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:
B4 1,469 1,270
Contracted for
HarEyE 6,438 6,368
Total commitments
BHCRIETTARIEATE ARG -
Funding support for the above outstanding capital commitments:
2025 2024
HET EET
$million $million
TREREHMERZ &4
Amounts to be financed by University’s resources
—  EWRBRALEEREETEE £ 1,002 965
Amounts recognised as income and retained as UGC funds
— RETEIREIME A e M Rt BC 2 R 3,446 2,112
Other amounts representing restricted funds or other funds to be allocated
LSO S A R AE W 2 72 6 F 30 H 2 48 237 172
Amounts received and reflected as deferred income as at 30 June
HEG A ERKE 2 Bk e 1,651 2,938
Amounts in respect of UGC grants approved but not yet received
THRRE R 2 102 181
Amounts pledged by donors
6,438 6,368
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22. AEREGHEIREGZEGRENEZ G EE KBTS
UNIVERSITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEMBERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

22.1 HESYH
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

P G h S B & 2 B S AR R B A4S H SR P T R 2R A S (TR S 4 P BB s T e A B R R
No contract of significance to which the University was a party and in which a Council member or a Council Committee member
was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

222 BRBEARE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AAREEREN > REHEST T THIERBIE 755

During the year, the University entered into the following material related parties transactions:

2025 2024
BET BHETT
$million $million
(a) MIBAE
Subsidiaries
i)  HEfEAEZRS
Transactions with subsidiaries
SEATHT A E 2 BRI E 26 15
Service fee paid to subsidiaries
26 15
M A S T E SR B 28 27
Overheads charged to subsidiaries
28 27
(i) FEYI S A FIRUH 162 129
Amounts due from subsidiaries
(i)  FEMHSEAEROR 1 1

Amount due to a subsidiary

JEWS / FEATTR B AN IR A - REAFIE - 2 SORIF TS - BEFCHT A REAENTE 12 R 14 Z456% -
Amounts due from / to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. The balances are
included in Notes 12 and 14 respectively.
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22. REREGHRAEMIEGZAGRENERGN SRR (&)
UNIVERSITY COUNCIL AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES MEMBERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

222 BABETIR G (8D
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

2025 2024
HET HETT
$million $million

(b) IHEAHE
An Associate
el A EIUE B o 2 2

Funds distribution from an associate

(0 CHEEEREN — S AR THRMANEZEE A2 #E GE
Compensation of the key management personnel who have also
been included in Note 4 - Remuneration of Higher Paid Staff
(Note)

< B HLA A 0 S e 81 76
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

HER (& 1R 7 7
Post employment benefits

88 83

i FHERA S AR ETEE - BT A ET R R A A BT TR+ U RA 185
HIE1 B RS

Note: Key management personnel represent senior management of the University whose primary responsibilities include
the review and approval of major administrative policies affecting the University’s operations, and long-term plans
and strategies for the development of the University.

(d) PEN - BRTBEE R B TRES - AR TR E &l B s E &% B &l B A SR ES M [ K S (T 8774
A R FIRB A TEWEUZ #E - e M (20244 @ &) -
No remunerations, fees or other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any Council members or Council Committees
members (other than those executive members and elected staff members) in respect of their services to the University during
the year (2024: Nil).
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23.

HAh =R
OTHER AGREEMENTS

(a)

BRI EEREE RIS (B Ay
Agreements related to establishing the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou)

FR2018F12H21H - REBEN T ARBUFFIEINKE H B - SEEARRORE (BN ( THERER (
MDD 5 ) - BIrERER (EIN) BVESREENT ARBIF « REAFTHERER (BN REtEE -

On 21 December 2018, the University signed agreements with the Guangzhou Municipal Government and Guangzhou
University (“GZU”) to establish Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Guangzhou) (“HKUST (GZ)”).
The funding for the establishment of HKUST (GZ) is provided by Guangzhou Municipal Government. No financial
commitment is required from the University to fund HKUST (GZ).

RERELRE MIRER 2 R A R HR S TRECEARIL - 7RIS EIRERER (BN BUREZR TSR & 2 -
B~ WARIBESE - MR &% - BRI REFGRABRIR (BIN) IHEREREDR
YEHARARI(E - FARRARICATIBHSE - BRIt » BRI (BN B KRB BRI iSRG & -
The arrangement between the University and GZU is a joint operation, where both parties account for their own assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in HKUST (GZ) as opposed to applying equity accounting.
Under the terms of the agreements, the University will not hold any assets or incur any liabilities, revenues or expenses
related to HKUST (GZ). Consequently, the arrangement with HKUST (GZ) has no impact on the financial results of
the University.

REREEERIR (BN - 7NN A RBUNESE S LA SR e 2t E R EAMUBRIR (BN & L IF

- BRRER IR HZE AL B B FORRHER S - IBRGERER (BN TRy B i R AT B /KB AR
HEREEIERSE - 1220256£6 H30H » AR E BN A RBUNTIAME IS SEREEAE T =H 87T (20244 1 —
fE—T/\HET)  UWEARBREEAET TSN T RERE, -

For the establishment of HKUST (GZ), the University received funding from Guangzhou Municipal Government to
support Guangzhou Pilot Scheme and other preparation work for HKUST (GZ), including but not limited to
postgraduate studentship and related teaching and learning expenditures, the salary costs of its staff who have been
involved in the work of HKUST (GZ) and the direct operating costs incurred in Clear Water Bay campus. As at 30
June 2025, the unspent balance of funding from Guangzhou Municipal Government of $23 million (2024: $118
million) was recorded within "Deferred Income" in the University balance sheet.

AAAEEA - REBERIR (BN T T THIEARRES
During the year, the University entered into the following material transactions with HKUST (GZ):

2025 2024
BET BET
$million $million
SRR (BIN) 2325
Transactions with HKUST (GZ)
SRR (BN Zitze & FE 4 4
Research Collaboration fee paid to HKUST (GZ)
BRIR (BN 2 B g 0 3

Service fee charged to HKUST (GZ)
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23.

HAthtak (&)
OTHER AGREEMENTS (CON'T)

(b)

BEHAHKCeND, HKCRC, ACCESS, HKGAI 2 HKSREfY {74
Agreements related to HKCeND, HKCRC, ACCESS, HKGAI and HKSRE

AR AERERBIASFER LR TR ITTRERN ( "BUY, ) BIREBEHEZ — - BUHEBRFRHEE (71
TC ) i InnoHKEHE] » & ol i bt FRER R BRI Ko/ Bips E A T RIS (R E - W E R S
A B E R AR A

As part of the Government of the HKSAR (the "Government") vision for Hong Kong to be the hub for global research
collaboration, the Government set up the InnoHK initiative through the Innovation and Technology Commission
("ITC") that involves the establishment of world-class research clusters in the Hong Kong Science Park with research
laboratories set up by world renowned institutions and/or commercial entities to conduct collaborative research
projects.

REEREIFEL EEtE] - BLBUN R EARHEAT (“HKSTP”) ZERHE - BALT AEHERAIRAE > AifEhn
oHKGH IS BUNHEI SR TR ED) - B FHERAIRAE DR R S ECRIT IR T AR AE (¢
HKCeND”) - FBEEHEHEHE OAIRAE (“HKCRC?) - BHEs A BASE PO AIRAE (“ACCES
S”) - BAEERANTEREHET OARAT (“HKGAD) FIFBRZE A BLEEIE PO AR A S (“HKSR
E”) - &t ( "InnoHK AF] )

In response to the above, the University entered into agreements with the Government and the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation (the "HKSTP") and set up five entities limited by guarantee to carry out research
activities with funding support from the Government under the InnoHK initiative. The five entities are Hong Kong
Center for Neurodegenerative Diseases Limited ("HKCeND"), Hong Kong Center for Construction Robotics Limited
("HKCRC"), Al Chip Center for Emerging Smart Systems Limited ("ACCESS"), Hong Kong Generative Al Research
and Development Center Limited ("HKGAI") and Hong Kong Space Robotics and Energy Centre Limited ("HKSRE")
(collectively the "InnoHK Companies").

EERERELEERARAFAE KA - ERYBEEBUT X HKSTPETILHI kR » RET &= A T E (0
HIRERR - A AE S H Inno HK N S]HIREA SRE T2 BRI SR [ml9 > IR ERNR & HF IS L AN FIHY#ER -
Although the University is the sole member of these entities, the University has not consolidated the results of these
entities under the terms of the agreements entered into with the Government and the HKSTP, the University is not
exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power to affect variable returns from its involvement with InnoHK
Companies.

AAFEEN > KRS InnoHK A FIHE(T T FYIE KBRS ¢

During the year, the University entered into the following material transactions with InnoHK Companies:

2025 2024
BET BHET

$million $million

(i) HillnnoHK AT 7355
Transactions with InnoHK Companies

InnoHK /5] % 12 3 H 4L B 27 2
Overheads charged to InnoHK Companies

InnoHK /351 (1 B%5 & 12 5 3

Research Collaboration fee charged to InnoHK Companies

B TAEH%InnoHK 24 =] ZAHRARA 8 6
Cost Recovery for staff deployed to InnoHK Companies

R InnoHK 4 BRI £ 5 B2 IR 26 42

Purchase of goods and services on behalf of InnoHK Companies

(i)  JEUInnoHK 7\ EJIE 51 37
Amounts due from InnoHK Companies

(i) 4 InnoHK /372 T 19 2

Receipt in advance from InnoHK Companies
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24,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In determining the carrying amounts of some
assets and liabilities, the University makes
assumptions of the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the balance
sheet date. These estimates involve assumptions
about such items as risk adjustment to cash flows
or discount rates used, future changes in salaries
and future changes in prices affecting other costs.
The University's estimates and assumptions are
based on historical experience and expectations of
future events and are reviewed periodically. In
addition to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the University's accounting
policies.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of computer sofiware

The University determines the estimated useful
lives for related depreciation charges for property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of computer
software. Management will revise the depreciation
or amortisation charges where useful lives are
different to previously estimated.

Valuation of investments

The fair values of financial instruments traded in
active markets are based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date. The fair values of
financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market are determined using established
valuation techniques. The University uses its
judgement to select valuation methods and pricing
sources to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period.
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25.

25.1

25.2

25.3

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Adoption of new / revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the University
has adopted all the new and revised standards and
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards
that are effective for the accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and relevant
to the operations of the University.

The University has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these amendments and considered that
there was no significant impact on the University's
results and financial position nor any substantial
changes to the University’s accounting policies
and presentation of the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the
University are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Investment in an Associate

An associate is an entity over which the University
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Investments in associate are included in the
University's balance sheet and are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses.

Investments in Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the University has control. The
University controls an entity when the University
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the University
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs, net of the residual values, if any, over the
estimated useful lives. Depreciation is charged
from the month when the asset is ready for use.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss and is not depreciated
until completion of construction. Cost of
completed construction works is transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss
arising from derecognition of an asset,
representing the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of that asset is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Intangible Assets
Computer software

Computer software costs are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software and are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation.

Amortisation of computer software is charged to
the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
lives. Amortisation is charged from the month
when the asset is ready for use.

Computer software under development is not
amortised until ready for use.
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25.

25.6

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial Assets
Classification

The University classifies its financial assets in the
following categories:

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through income and
expenditure), and

(b) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in income and
expenditure or OCI. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
University has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at FVOCL.

The University reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the University measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through income
and expenditure (“FVIE”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVIE are expensed in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt investments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the University's business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the University
classifies its debt instruments:

(a) Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
interest and investment income using the
effective interest rate method.

(b) FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for sale, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCIL. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment losses, interest
income using the effective interest rate
method and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to the statement of
comprehensive income and recognised in
interest and investment income.

(c) FVIE: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVIE. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
FVIE is recognised and presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within
interest and investment income in the period
in which it arises.
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25.

25.6

25.7

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial Assets (Cont’d)
Equity Instruments

The University subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the University’s
management has made an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, on derecognition of the
investment, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to income and
expenditure and any balance within other
comprehensive  income for these equity
investments is reclassified to other funds as a fund
movement. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the University’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVIE are recognised and presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within
interest and investment income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The University assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowances for expected credit losses. The
University measured the loss allowance for its
accounts receivables at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses. Appropriate
allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits available on demand with an original
maturity of 3 months or less.

Accounts payable, accruals, deferred income
and contract liabilities

Accounts payable and accruals are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Funds earmarked for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.
Funds received but not yet recognised as income
are recorded as deferred income.

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance
consideration received from customers, where the
University has the unconditional right to
considerations before the goods or services are
delivered. They are released and revenues are
recognised when the performance obligations are
satisfied upon transferring of goods and services
to customers.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the University has
a present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the University will be required
to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured
at management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the University reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income immediately.
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25.14

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Impairment (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Deferred Capital Funds

Deferred capital funds represent funds from
subventions and grants or donations spent by the
University on the purchase of property, plant and
equipment as well as intangible assets. These
funds are recognised as income in the statement of
comprehensive income to match against the
depreciation charges of the related asset items
over their estimated useful lives.

Recognition of Income

(a) Government subventions and grants
Government subventions and grants are
recognised in  the statement  of
comprehensive income when there is
reasonable assurance that the University will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them; and that the subventions and grants
will be received.

Grants earmarked for specific purposes are
recognised as income to the extent of the
related expenses are incurred during the
reporting period.

Subvention and grants spent on capital
expenditure are initially recorded as deferred
capital funds and recognised as income to
match against the depreciation charges of
the related asset items over their estimated
useful lives.

Government subventions and grants that
become repayment are accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate. Repayment
of government subventions and grants
related to income is applied first against any
unamortised deferred income recognised in
respect of the government subventions and
grants. To the extent that the repayment
exceeds any such deferred income, or when
no deferred income exists, the repayment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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25.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

25.14 Recognition of Income (Cont’d)

53

(b)

(©

(d)

()

Donations

Donations without conditions in cash or cash
equivalents or other investment instruments are
recognised as income when received or
receivable.  Outstanding pledges are not
recognised as income unless a legal obligation on
the donor can be established by the University.

Donations received with a specific purpose are
recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred during the reporting period.

Tuition, programmes and other fees

Tuition, programmes and other fees are
recognised over time when the services are
rendered and the University's performance
provides the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the students. Tuition,
programmes and other fees recognised on an
accrual basis and unearned fees are included in
contract liabilities.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discount the
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Research contract income

Income from contract research is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the University’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the
expenses incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract.

Licensing income

Licensing income is recognised on a straight line
basis over the contract period when a customer is
granted with a right to access the patents as it
throughout ~ the  licence  period.
Alternatively, licensing income is recognised at a
single point in time upon delivery of the patents
when a customer is provided with a right to use
the patents as it exists at the point in time at
which the licence is granted.

exists
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the University.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities are measured at the net present value of
the remaining fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liabilities. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and lease interest expense. The lease interest
expense is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Lease liabilities are classified as non-current
liabilities unless payments are payable within 12
months from the balance sheet date.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the lease terms on a straight-line
basis. Payments associated with short-term leases
with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets are expensed on a straight-line
basis in the statement of comprehensive income.

Lease income from operating leases where the
University is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.



25.

25.16

25.17

FEREHBR (8D

BIREFES

FoSE SRR IRETEIFTZ (T 2808 » 7o
BEHBSIATE Z IR 5 A SRR

HRIIRBEATRIENEE > REREE
HEEHERIE19.93@fF - FHTHEHEHAY(E
TR M E (e S S RIS e it
O Mg FEREAERT R - RAAEF A dET
SBEEATPR R R B LA T
FELE Y ERTHHEFIY B E RS E

A BRI AR R (B R -

s

HNEESE 5 T B e H B TRERRIA R Ry
ThRE BN - (N Eall Sds M A AR
e DURREESIER RSN IE
HIENE E e AR E RIS - —
LR T RN ERY -

B K AR EEEE H U ERIA S -

WA BRSO FHIE R R (FRIEZ T
RN IER By H B TR R T Y
EHffE o BEEEE > WA
AR EyE HRIBERIAE )  RFrA AL
JEELE PR 52 22 BRI Ry (B I AEL el o

750

25.

25.16

25.17

55

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Retirement Benefits Costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contribution.

For long service payment ("LSP") obligation, the
University accounts for the employer MPF
contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation
in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measured on a
net basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the University’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the balance sheet date.

Income and expenditure are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions);
and all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.
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25.18

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Cost Allocation for UGC-funded and non-UGC
funded activities for segment reporting

In compiling the segment reporting for compliance
with the Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-
funded and non-UGC-funded Activities (“the
Guidelines™) effective from 1 July 2018, costs
associated with UGC activities, non-UGC
activities or shared activities are identified. Costs
directly attributable to UGC or non-UGC activities
are not subject to cost allocation. Shared costs are
allocated to UGC and non-UGC segments using
appropriate cost drivers including teaching credits
of UGC and non-UGC programmes, the number of
student Full Time Equivalents (FTE), floor area,
etc.. Costs funded by donations are regarded as
direct costs and reported under the Non-UGC
Segment.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS PUBLISHED
THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

AR EETL A FS e M e - FH DA N AR B R R AR5 - W B HEE A R < Wrs ] S A EETAER ~ (B3] Kaehs

The University has not early adopted the following new standards, amendments, and interpretations which have been
issued and are relevant to its operations but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

FREEERIE 21 9% (f£37) = AT SR

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of exchangeability '

BRSO 5 R 758 (B5]) SR B R RIET

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the classification and measurement of

. 2
financial instruments

EAEMBHR S G ER  FENE - 116 T R EA PR s G FI 2 e
Annual improvements to HKFRS Accounting Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards

Standards — Volume 11

BB RIS 18 9 BTSSR TS hy

HKFRS 18 Presentation and disclosure in financial statements °
BTSN 19 57 FENFZHRET TS’

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosures 3

AV G RIS 10 58 R BB e RIS 28 58 BEERHB SR SR b RELEREE
(f&51)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale and Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture *

bOR20254E1 A 1 H B Fa 2 AR R AR AR -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

202641 51 H BB A HARI A% -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

1A20274E1 F 1 HELMEBRIA 2 R HAR 425

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Y AREIE

Effective date to be determined.

B IERL L R A 2 B0 ~ (B3] R R AR 22 B RS - (ROIEET - FRE B Bl BRI
18 5% — IR AR BT T g SRR R 2 RSB LB (I BRI BERZ 25~ g
HHER B R B

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above new standards, amendments and interpretations on the
University’s financial statements. From the initial assessment, it is considered that there will be no significant impact to
the accounting policies or presentation of the financial statements, except for HKFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in
financial statements, where the structure of the University's statement of comprehensive income is expected to change.
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27, EBEE  BERERZEMERRE
OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB

271 HEGEHERGHE
UGC’S MATCHING GRANTS SCHEMES

TEXCAFRCHERGETET RS RO & IR TR B S SRR B Z RO - BN - MEBHFT R R S R o s T
Under UGC’s Matching Grant Schemes, qualified donations raised by institutions are matched by respective UGC grants in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the schemes. Details of the matching grants, related donations and expenditure are set out below respectively:

BHEGHE A HAREZES
UGC-funded Operations Self-financing Operations
BUBHERK il 35321
Matching ERCH 2 AT Matching ERCHZ FSHR
Grant Matched Donations Grant Matched Donations
HHT HET BHET HHT
$million $million $million $million
20234E7 A1 H 4565 1,811 1,686 27 20
Balance as at 1 July 2023
A
Income
IR 0 0 0 0
Grants and Donations
L EF] 190 225 4 0
Gain from Investments
190 225 4 0
i
Expenditure
HEHEBER KTST 15 32 0 1
Teaching and Research Enhancement
Eflooa b KR E T SRR 2 2 0 0
Academic Strength and Niche Area Development
RS KA 58 8 0 0
Scholarships and Prizes
e 0 1 0 0
Bursaries
R ke 0 2 0 0
Student Development
LR At 35 78 1 0
Management & General / Others
110 123 1 1
e (£) /&S (118) 53 0 0
Transfer (to) / from capital funds
20244E6 A30H K75 1 H 2 4566 1,773 1,841 30 19
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024
A
Income
IR 0 0 0 0
Grants and Donations
BRI 265 324 7 0
Gain from Investments
265 324 7 0
i
Expenditure
HEHEBER K TST 17 33 0 0
Teaching and Research Enhancement
Eflooa b KR E T SRR 1 2 0 0
Academic Strength and Niche Area Development
B KA 86 4 0 0
Scholarships and Prizes
e 0 0 0 0
Bursaries
R ke 0 2 0 0
Student Development
LR HAt 35 69 1 0
Management & General / Others
139 110 1 0
e (£) /&S (19) 58 0 0
Transfer (to) / from capital funds
20254E6 301 4565 1,880 2,113 36 19

Balance as at 30 June 2025
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BBEY  BERERZAMEEE (#)
OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

27.2

BEG SRR R E

UGC’S RESEARCH MATCHING GRANTS SCHEMES

TELE GIHTRECEHEFGTEIT - e & IR T BIRROEAR R B BHERK - TRZERCEHERR - AR HERR S AR EE Y RIS T ¢
Under UGC’s Research Matching Grant Schemes, qualified donations raised by institutions are matched by respective UGC grants in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the schemes. Details of the research matching grants, related donations and expenditure are set out below respectively:

BEERIZES B A& EE
UGC-funded Operations Self-fi ing Operations
Ldint s pdzinsi ] EECH Z Frasisk/
BRI R R HREY BRFERCEHERK R HREE
Research Matched Donations Research Matched Donations
Matching / Matching /
Grant Research Grants / Grant Research Grants /
BET HEL HET BHET
$million $million $million $million
202347 H L H 2 &5k 408 532 20 25
Balance as at 1 July 2023
[LON
Income
IR ARRK 26 52 1 3
Grants and Donations
fita il 1 4 0 0
Gain from Investments
27 56 1 3
]
Expenditure
WgeEH 15 48 3 6
Research Projects
THFER 23 26 0 0
Research Equipment
WFCHERBREER A BT 0 0 0 0
Research-related Software Licence / Technology Licence
BavATIE 0 0 0 0
Setting up of Research Facilities
SAESUSEE) 14 1 0 0
Research Activities for Students
HAth, 0 5 0 0
Others
52 80 3 6
IR R AR (150) (78) ) 0
Transfers to deferred capital funds
20244E6 H30H R 7TH 1 H 2 456k 233 430 13 22
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024
[LON
Income
R 0 0 0 0
Grants and Donations
fita il 0 2 0 0
Gain from Investments
0 2 0 0
Sz
Expenditure
WgeEH 16 33 3 3
Research Projects
EiE 50 34 1 0
Research Equipment
WFCHERBREER (R BT 0 0 0 0
Research-related Software Licence / Technology Licence
BVl 0 0 0 0
Setting up of Research Facilities
EMETTEED) 13 12 0 0
Research Activities for Students
Ffh 0 4 0 0
Others
79 83 4 3
IR IE AR S 33 13 1 0
Transfers from deferred capital funds
202546 H30H Z 4564 187 362 10 19

Balance as at 30 June 2025
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27. EERY / FERERZEMEEEE ()
OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

273 FEREHET RN (&)
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(@ FHEBESMOREHEE ( TORKEETEL )
Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“SSE”)

R EBNETEIAR 2014/ 1SR - [ EREAREN 2 H R L2 (EEEREITE) REESE L2 IFEmA
BN ER A SR LB B 2B MR

The SSE was launched in 2014/15 to subsidise financially needy students studying full-time locally-accredited
undergraduate (including top-up) and sub-degree programs to participate in exchange activities.

RERCIE & BRI H R SO R B B HEA RIS S | A RFTE TAERR © HERAWCA S B S s 4R R 7y I3
BT :

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the SSE as set out in the
relevant Operating Guide of the SSE. Details of the income and expenditure of the scheme are separately disclosed as

follows:

20234E7 H1 H 2 4Z6%
Balance as at 1 July 2023

A

Income

EH)
Subsidies

BERENEZ 58
Refund of Unspent Subsidies

REPA

Income from Investments

XM

Expenditure

Tl
Exchange Programs for Students

2024 4F6 /730 H 7 H1 HZ 458
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024

A

Income

=i/
Subsidies

BB Z &)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies

FREEWA

Income from Investments

it

Expenditure

SR
Exchange Programs for Students

202516 30 H Z458F
Balance as at 30 June 2025

University Financial Statements 2024/25

7
$

2,210,838

3,115,497
(1,622,031)

21,077
1,514,543
(1,581,100)

2,144,281

4,762,803
(1,861,360)

11,108
2,912,551
(1,970,800

3,086,032
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OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

27.3

WERITAERR B E (8D
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(b)

B ESAFHE T WEOREHEE (BERAREE) (T, IREsE# (F#
RAREL) )

Scheme for Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students
(“Means-tested SSEBR”)

Pl ) SOREIETE] (W AREFL) 1B72015/1650 /K » 4t BISHE MR A B A M EHGE
BN A B A B — A — B AT -

The Means-tested SSEBR was launched in 2015/16 to encourage and support local students in receipt of means-
tested financial assistance to go on exchanges in the “Belt and Road” regions.

RETEE BTG " —R %) OREETE (BT ARFR) BRI N RAETR
o FERBEU A B B SRR ) R B 40 T

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the Means-tested
SSEBR as set out in the relevant Operating Guide of the SSEBR. Details of the income and expenditure of the
scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

A
$
202347 H1 H Z 4268 1,560,643
Balance as at 1 July 2023
BA
Income
=77 1,677,749
Subsidies
BEREZ &) (1,423,942
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REEWA 14,290
Income from Investments
268,097
277
Expenditure
LA (327,753)
Exchange Programs for Students
202446 /30 H K7 H1 HZ4Z6# 1,500,987
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024
BA
Income
b=7://4 2,163,485
Subsidies
BEREN = &) (1,158,548)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REPA 6.828
Income from Investments
1,011,765
277
Expenditure
BE A (605,900)
Exchange Programs for Students
20254E6 /730 H Z4Z68 1,906,852

Balance as at 30 June 2025
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OTHER DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY UGC / EDB (CONT’D)

273 BEBEHEERAEDETE (8D
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(0 FERERWRENEE (RASFLD) (THHREDEE, RARFL )

Non-means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (“Non-means-tested MES”)

THIZOREBEE , (RAEEL) HAR2019200% - D ABELEYASNER) - SR _FE AR
e
The Non-means-tested MES was launched in 2019/20 which provided non-means-tested subsidies to encourage post-
secondary students to pursue exchange activities in the Mainland.

REECUEEHEIRGIER T NHEORERETE] . (RASEE) AT P EERRIRPETHURE - FHRAA
R BHSZ ARFASaE y BIB FE AT

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the Non-means-tested MES
as set out in the relevant Operating Guide of the Non-means-tested MES. Details of the income and expenditure of the
scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

T
$
202347 1 H 2 4%68 933,008
Balance as at 1 July 2023
WA
Income
V=7://4 961,644
Subsidies
BIERE)H &) (892,997)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REEWA 8,462
Income from Investments
77,109
=774
Expenditure
L AT (142,200)
Exchange Programs for Students
202446 /30 H K7 H1 HZ4Z6x 867,917
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024
A
Income
V=514 420,000
Subsidies
BIE[RENG B (831,522)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REWA 3170
Income from Investments
(408,352)
it
Expenditure
LB (113.700)
Exchange Programs for Students
20254E6 530 .2 4568 345,865

Balance as at 30 June 2025

University Financial Statements 2024/25
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B RS REDEE (8D
EDB’S MATCHING GRANT AND SUBSIDY SCHEMES (CONT’D)

(@

B EBARME i MERRENEE (RARED) (K IREEHED

(RARFEE))

Scheme for Non-means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students
(“Non-means-tested SSEBR”)

P ORABNEHE (R AEFER) HAIR2019205 % - Dl ABHFEIPASRBGAR) - SR FE AR
—H— BRSO -
The Non-means-tested SSEBR was launched in 2019/20 which provided non-means-tested subsidies to encourage post-
secondary students to pursue exchange activities in the “Belt and Road” regions.

RERC B BRSO i SORE RS (R ARER) BRIES [PNEERUHRPETAIRGL - HEE
WA B BRI S AR R AN AR S I RE AT T

The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions for the use of funding under the Non-means-tested
SSEBR as set out in the relevant Operating Guide of the Non-means-tested SSEBR. Details of the income and
expenditure of the scheme are separately disclosed as follows:

r
8
202347 1 H Z 4567 2,801,708
Balance as at 1 July 2023
BA
Income
V=74 3,001,041
Subsidies
BIE[REB)H = EH) (2,520,845)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
REYA 25,664
Income from Investments
505,860
it
Expenditure
LR ] (320,500
Exchange Programs for Students
202446 /530 H &7 1 H 24568 2,787,068
Balance as at 30 June and 1 July 2024
KA
Income
V—7://4 1,890,202
Subsidies
BIE[RENH L) (2,429,676)
Refund of Unspent Subsidies
10,345
FREEHA
Income from Investments
(529,129)
i
Expenditure
BE A (785,400)
Exchange Programs for Students
2025 4F6 30 H Z 4548 1,472,539

Balance as at 30 June 2025
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